Eastleigh House
Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

1 June 2020

NOTICE OF MEETING
BURSLEDON, HAMBLE-LE-RICE AND HOUND LOCAL AREA
COMMITTEE
will meet on
Thursday, 11 June 2020
beginning at
6:00 pm
PLEASE NOTE: this will be a ‘virtual meeting’.
The meeting can be viewed here: https://bit.ly/2TKejvp
TO:

Councillor Tonia Craig (Chair)
Councillor Steve Holes (Vice-Chair)
Councillor David Airey
Councillor Adam Manning

Staff Contacts:

Councillor Malcolm Cross
Councillor Jane Rich

Laura Johnston, Senior Democratic Services Officer Tel:
02380688041; Email: laura.johnston@eastleigh.gov.uk
Julie Williams, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 8289; Email:
julie.williams@eastleigh.gov.uk

NATALIE WIGMAN
Corporate Director - Strategy
_____________________________________________________________________

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the
Council's website https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk.
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and
other languages, upon request.
PLEASE NOTE that any member of the press and public may listenin to proceedings at this ‘virtual’ meeting via a weblink which will be
publicised on the Council website at least 24hrs before the meeting. It
is important, however, that Councillors can discuss and take
decisions without disruption, so the only participants in this virtual
meeting will be the Councillors concerned, the officers advising the
Committee and any participants who have registered in advance to
speak. This meeting will be recorded.

1

AGENDA
1.

Apologies

2.

Declarations of Interest
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the
agenda. Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.

3.

Chair's Announcements

4.

Public Participation
Councillors not on the Local Area Committee and members of the public can
participate during this section of the meeting in the following ways:


If you are able to participate live (meet the technical requirements) and wish to
be present and speak, you will need to notify Democratic Services 4 working
days (Midday Friday 5 June 2020) before the meeting. Technical and etiquette
guides will be provided.



Alternatively, the public can email a statement to be read out by ‘the
spokesperson’. Emailed statements will need to be received 2 working days
(Midday Tuesday 9 June 2020) before the date of the meeting. Democratic
Services will confirm receipt of the email and confirm it can be read out.



The statement (including questions) will be the equivalent of a maximum
of three minutes if read out. Please therefore restrict your statement to one
side of A4 (12 font). This applies audio/ video recordings also.



Alternatively a MP4 file will be sent to Democratic Services 4 working days
(Midday Friday 5 June 2020) before the meeting. This must be accompanied
by a written transcript (emailed). In the event that the file does not meet
technical requirements the transcript will be read by the spokesperson and
shown on the screen.

Please contact us via democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk
5.

Minutes of Previous Meeting

(Pages 5 - 12)

To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 19 December 2019.
6.

Appointments to Outside Bodies, Regulatory and other Panels

(Pages 13 - 24)

7.

Financial Management Report

8.

Presentation on Planning Guidelines

9.

Planning Application -14A CROWSPORT, HAMBLE-LE-RICE, SOUTHAMPTON,
SO31 4HG - H/19/86984 (Pages 31 - 44)

(Pages 25 - 30)

Erection of a new first floor extension with roof terrace, front and side extensions,

2

alterations to fenestration, alterations to landscape, car parking layout and front
boundary treatment.
10.

Planning Appeals
The Head of Legal Services to report:(a)

that the following appeals have been lodged:4 New Road, Netley Abbey, SO31 5DL.
Appeal against the Council’s enforcement action that without planning
permission, a single storey side extension exceeding 4 metres in height and
including a canopy protruding beyond the principal elevation has been
erected (EA/20/87821).
Fairport House, Lands End Road, Bursledon. SO31 8DN
Appeal against the Council's refusal of planning permission for removal of
condition 2 and variation of condition 7 of application C/16/78768 to allow
retention of partial change of use of ground floor of existing outbuilding to
B1(a) office use (X/19/85436).

(b)

that the following appeals have been allowed:Land at the corner of Peewit Hill and West End Road, Bursledon, SO31 8BL
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission to keep
the gates on the Peewit Hill entrance (F/18/84421)

(c)

that the following appeals have been dismissed:Land at the corner of Peewit Hill and West End Road, Bursledon, SO31 8BL
Appeal against the Council’s enforcement notice citing the alleged breach of
planning control that without permission, a siting of a container on the site
(EA/19/8603).
DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Thursday, 2 July 2020 at 6:00 pm
at Hamble Primary School, Hamble Lane,
Hamble-le-Rice, SO31 4ND
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news -

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s
happening in the Borough. Simply select your topics and we will send you email
updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling,
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
1
BURSLEDON, HAMBLE-LE-RICE AND HOUND LOCAL AREA
COMMITTEE
Thursday, 19 December 2019 (6:00 pm – 9:35 pm)
PRESENT:
Councillor Craig (Chairman); Councillors Holes, Airey, Cross and Manning
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Rich
________________________________________
40.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Cross declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 7 and
after addressing the Committee as a member of the public; left the room
and did not take part in the debate or vote on the application.

41.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2019 be
approved as correct.

42.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
Mr Maurice Doe addressed the Committee on the purchase of the Car
Boot site but was informed that this was not the correct forum for this
discussion.
Maureen Queen of Hound Parish Council addressed the Committee on the
issue of car parking in Netley Abbey at the rear of the social club. This
was a community asset that the club had withdrawn to assist with a
planning application. The Borough Council car park was used by
residents of New Road to park all day. There had been a useful meeting
with Eastleigh Borough Council’s (EBC) Traffic Engineers and Cllr Airey
and the Parish Council asked that the Committee supported a time limit for
the car park and the part funding of a traffic engineer.

43.

PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES
The Head of Housing and Development gave a short presentation on
guidelines that had to be taken into account when determining planning
applications; in particular the issues that could, and could not, be taken
into account. This was set against the broader policy framework.

5

2

44.

PLANNING APPLICATION - GE AVIATION, KINGS AVENUE, HAMBLELE-RICE, SO31 4NF - O/18/84191
The Committee considered a report by the Head of Housing and
Development (Agenda Item 7) concerning an outline planning application
with all matters reserved (except for means of access) for the construction
of up to 148 residential dwellings (Use Class C3) with new vehicular
access to Hamble Lane, alterations to Kings Avenue and Coronation
Parade, new car parking for existing sports facilities, employment use and
residential properties, landscaping, improvements to existing bowls and
football facilities on site and other associated works. Demolition of nonoriginal extensions to Sydney Lodge (Grade II* Listed Building) and
redundant factory buildings (O/18/84191).
The Head of Housing and Development gave the following updates:
 HCC Highways confirm no objection in principle subject to minor
detail design changes as part of the S278 process.
 6 letters of objection following notification of the committee date
raising issues set out in the agenda
 Corrections
 Para 43 – artificial pitch not artificial footpath
 Para 116 – Hamble Lane not Providence Lane
 Para 121 – not common and but former airfield site
 Condition 1 to be updated to reference highway plans “17055-00146_P05”
 Additional condition - The development here by approved shall not
be occupied or brought in to use until the access is constructed
broadly in accordance with dwg 17055-00-146_P05. Reason: In the
interest of highway safety.
The Committee debated the item and whilst noting that a lot of work had
been carried out since July the following areas of concern were raised:
this represented overdevelopment, the Council already had a five year
housing supply, schools were already at capacity with children having to
travel off the peninsula to attend school, additional traffic on Hamble Lane
which was already over capacity, impact on waiting times at the Doctors
surgery which was already struggling to cope with demand and the money
for sport not being spent in the village.
The Committee noted the recommendation to Permit. A motion to refuse
the granting of the permission was proposed and seconded by Councillors.
RESOLVED That the Committee noted offices recommendation to Grant Outline
Approval but to refuse the scheme for the following reasons:
1. The proposals represent an inappropriate and unjustified form of
development beyond the urban edge which would result in the loss of

6

3
countryside and have an unacceptably urbanising impact to the
detriment of the character, visual amenity, and the quality of the
landscape of the locality. The application is therefore contrary to Saved
Policies 1.CO, 18.CO, and 59.BE(i) of the adopted Eastleigh Borough
Local Plan Review (2001-2011), emerging policies S1(ix), S7, DM1 i(a)
of the submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2016 – 2036) and the
provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework.
2. The application fails to demonstrate that an appropriate means of
access can be provided to serve the development without
unacceptable impact and interference on the footpath and cycleway
infrastructure, to the detriment of the ease of use and safety of
pedestrians and cyclists. The proposals are therefore contrary to the
requirements of Saved Policies 59.BE (v), 92.T and 102.T of the
adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011, emerging
policies DM13 of the submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2016 –
2036) and the provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework
3. The proposal involves development that cannot be reconciled with the
National Planning Policy Framework in that the significant movements
generated by the proposed residential development, when considered
cumulatively with the potential for a growth in traffic associated with the
retained commercial activities on site, could not be accommodated
adequately on Hamble Lane and its junctions with adjoining roads. This
would result in a severe impact on the road safety and operation of the
local transport network contrary to the provisions of the National
Planning Policy Framework and saved policies 100.T, 101.T and 102.T
of the adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan and emerging Policy
DM13 of the submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2016 – 2036).
4. Insufficient information has been submitted to demonstrated that the
loss of the cricket wicket and its outfield, which also provides for two
grass football pitches and training area, can be adequately mitigated
within the Parish of Hamble-le-Rice. The proposal is therefore contrary
to Saved Policy 145.OS of the adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan
Review 2001-2011, emerging policies DM34 of the submitted Eastleigh
Borough Local Plan (2016 – 2036) and the provisions of the National
Planning Policy Framework, the adopted Sports Facility Needs
Assessment and Playing Pitch Strategy Update 2017 and Exception
Policy E4 of Sport England’s Playing Fields Policy - ‘A Sporting Future
for the Playing Fields of England’.
5. The application fails to provide for the required mitigation to offset the
impacts of the development on the European protected site (SPA, SAC
and pSPA) from nitrogen loading generated by the population increase
resulting from the development. The application is therefore contrary to
the requirements of Saved Policies 25.NC and 45.ES of the adopted
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011, Policies DM10 and
DM11 of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036, Paragraphs
170, 175 and 176 of the National Planning Policy Framework, and the

7

4
provisions of The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations
2017.
6. The application fails to secure provision for developer contributions for
on and off-site provision of facilities and infrastructure (including
affordable housing, air quality monitoring, education, the Solent
Disturbance Mitigation project, sustainable transport measures,
improvements to Hamble Lane Corridor, improvements and
enhancements to the local footpath network, community infrastructure,
on-site public open space and play area provision, off-site public open
space, enhanced and replacement sports pitch and facilities, public art)
made necessary by the development or to mitigate against any
increased need or pressure on existing facilities. As such the
application is contrary to policies 101.T, 147.OS, 165.TA, 191.IN of
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011), Eastleigh Borough
Council's Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document and
Paragraphs 17, 203 and 204 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.
Note to Applicant: The application was refused following the assessment
of
the following plans: FD16 1431 50 (existing site), FD16-1431-56
(Illustrative Master Plan May 19), FD16-1431-58 (Phasing May 19) FD161431-60 (Developable Area May 19), FD16-1431-61 (Land Use May 19),
FD16-1431-62 (Open Space May 19), FD16-1431-63 (Height May 19),
FD16-1431-64 (Means of Access May 19), 17055-00-146_P05 (General
Arrangements)
[NOTES: (Councillor Cross declared a non-pecuniary interest in the item
and after addressing the Committee as a member of the public; left the
room and did not take part in the debate or vote on the application; (B) a
number of local residents, including a representative of Hamble Parish
Council, spoke in opposition to the scheme citing concerns of over
development, lack of school places, a disregard for sustainable transport
and an increase in traffic on Hamble Lane; (C) a representative from GE
Aviation spoke in support of the scheme citing the removal of the objection
by Sports England, the sale of the business to Aeronova bringing long
term security, the securing of contributions for Hamble and the proposed
access allowing fewer movements via Cliffe Avenue; and (D) an objection
had been received from the new Member of Parliament for Eastleigh, Paul
Holmes, on Highway grounds.]
45.

PLANNING APPLICATION - LAND TO THE NORTH SIDE OF GRANGE
ROAD, NETLEY ABBEY, SOUTHAMPTON - RM/19/86186
The Committee considered a report by the Head of Housing and
Development (Agenda Item) concerning a Reserved Matters application
pursuant to Outline planning permission O/16/78014 for 89 dwellings
(matters to be considered: appearance, landscaping, layout and scale)

8

5
and discharge of conditions 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 21
and 22 of outline permission O/16/78014. RM/19/86186.
The Senior Planning Officer gave the following updates:
•
•
•

•

Plans amended to ensure no works, including pumping station, are
on land within ownership of Netley Grange Limited (landscaping
and works did previously breach)
Revised list of plans for Condition 2 to include 15415-BT6
Additional recommended conditions:
i)
“Within 3 months of the written request of the Local Planning
Authority, a road link to adoptable standards to the adjoining
Hermitage, Grange Road site shall be provided up to the site
boundary without service margins, and with no gaps or
breaks which would prevent its use by vehicles entering or
leaving the sites. Full details of these works shall be provided
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
before works commence. Reason: in the interests of
highway safety and to provide properly planned
development”.
ii)
“Prior to the commencement of development, final details of
the pumping station works, fencing and screen planting on the site
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority and these approved details only shall be provided.
Reason: in the interests of amenity.”
Confirmed delegated authority to Head of Housing and
Development to discharge outstanding conditions for drainage,
noise mitigation and contaminated land still sought

Resolved –
That the Committee approved the reserved matters subject to all
recommended conditions; discharge conditions as per report, and
give delegated authority to Head of Housing and Development for
discharge of outstanding conditions
[NOTES: (A) A resident of Netley Grange spoke in objection to the
application citing concerns about the location of the pumping station
because it was on top of services for the Grange and the current state of
the site following flytipping; and (B) the applicants agent spoke in support
of the application stating that residents were supporting of the mixture of
dwellings, a road would be created through to the Hermitage site and that
it had been carefully designed. He confirmed that the development would
take place without affecting services.]
46.

PLANNING APPLICATION - CHALCOT, YORK ROAD, NETLEY ABBEY,
SOUTHAMPTON, SO31 5DD - F/19/86252
The Committee considered a report by the Head of Housing and
Development (Agenda Item 9) concerning a planning application for the

9

6
construction of detached two bedroom dwelling following demolition of
existing dwelling and ancillary structures (F/19/86252).
The Senior Planning Officer gave the following updates:
• Nightingale House site considered
• Revised ecology information received – buffer still sought
• No decked area proposed
Resolved –
That planning permission be refused as recommended.
[NOTES: (A) Hound Parish Council spoke in opposition to the scheme
citing concerns around erosion, the potential for setting a precedent for
building in front of the existing building line, lack of sea defences and the
building being uninsurable; and (B) the applicants agent informed the
Committee that this application paved the way for a sea defence
application to stop erosion and protect trees and the fact that the building
was only increasing by 23% in footprint and 2m in height.]
47.

PLANNING APPLICATION - PILE V24-25, MID STREAM HAMBLE
RIVER, BURSLEDON, SO31 8DN - F/19/86469
The Committee considered a report by the Head of Housing and
Development concerning the installation of 1no. pontoon between piles
V24 -25 in midstream River Hamble opposite the Jolly Sailor at Pile V2425, Mid-stream Hamble river, Bursledon, SO31 8DN (F/19/86469).
There were no updates to this report.
RESOLVED That planning permission be granted.
[NOTE: The applicants spoke in support of their application citing safety
grounds.]

48.

FINANCIAL REPORT AND FEES AND CHARGES
The Committee considered a report by the Temporary Local Area
Manager (Agenda Item 11) that set out the Fees and Charges for 2020/21
and several financial matters that needed to be considered.
RESOLVED –
That the Committee approved:

10

(1)

the Hamble Square parking charges for 2020 as set out within
the report;

(2)

the allocation of £5,068 of Developer Contributions to the
replacement of a bus shelter on Station Road, Netley Abbey;

7

49.

(3)

the allocation of £5,535 from reserves to fund the moving of the
Bofors gun from Hamble Point; and

(4)

noted that £700 has been spent on new waste bins within the area.

PLANNING APPEALS
The Head of Legal Services reported:(a)

that the following appeals had been dismissed:Myrtle Cottage, Lands End Road, Bursledon, SO31 8DN
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission
for a two storey rear extension with glass link to existing cottage
(W/19/3223341).
Myrtle Cottage, Lands End Road, Bursledon, SO31 8DN

Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant listed buildings consent
(Y/19/3223344)
RESOLVED That the report be noted.
M6589
1.

FIELD_TITLEFIELD_TITLE

11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
BURSLEDON, HAMBLE-LE-RICE AND HOUND LOCAL AREA
COMMITTEE
Thursday, 11 June 2020
APPOINTMENTS TO REGULATORY PANELS, OTHER GROUPS
AND OUTSIDE BODIES
Report of the Local Area Manager

Recommendation
It is recommended that:
(1)
(2)

the nominations for 2020-21 municipal year appointments to regulatory
panels and other groups as set out in paragraph 5 are approved; and
the proposed nominations for 2020-21 municipal year appointments to
Outside Bodies, as set out in appendix A are approved.

Summary
Regulatory Panels are formal decision-making panels required to deliver the council’s
statutory obligations. The other groups comprise those established to share information or
manage local initiatives. Outside bodies are external organisations, including formal or
informal partnerships, to which the Borough Council is a party, which have requested that
the Borough Council appoint an Elected Councillor or a representative to them or to which
the Council expects to make appointments.
Statutory Powers
Local Government Act 2000, Localism Act 2011.

Strategic Implications
1.

This report relates to governance arrangements which underpin all the
Council’s Corporate Plan objectives.

Introduction
2.

Regulatory Panels are formal decision-making panels required to deliver the
council statutory obligations, such as Licensing. The other groups comprise
those established to share information or manage local initiatives.

13

3.

Outside bodies are external organisations and partnerships which have
requested that the Borough Council appoint an Elected Councillor or a
representative to them. Participation in outside bodies:




4.

Contributes to the Borough Council’s strategic functions, priorities or
community leadership roles;
Supports partnership and joint working; and
Enables Councillors to gain and share knowledge and expertise.

All Councillors are eligible to be appointed as representatives of the Borough
Council on these groups. Councillors and staff appointed must respond to all
reasonable requests for information about the work of the outside body and
their participation in it.

Proposal
5.

This Committee is responsible for making Councillor appointments to a
number of Regulatory Panels and other groups. The following nominations
have been made for Councillor representatives for the municipal year 20-21
and it is recommended that these are approved as follows.
Regulatory Panels
Licensing Appeals

Councillor nominations for 20-21
All members of the Committee to be
appointed to a pool from which any
three can be selected.

Other Groups
Bursledon Windmill Group

6.

Councillor Jane Rich

This Committee is also responsible for making Councillor appointments to
Outside Bodies within the Eastleigh Local Area. A list of outside bodies to
which the Local Councillors makes appointments to and the recommended
nominees can be found at Appendix A.

Financial Implications
7.

There are no financial implications associated with this decision.

Risk Assessment
8.

Councillors must consider the implications and responsibilities of being
involved with outside bodies as they must:


Continue to comply with the Borough Council’s Code of Conduct when
they are acting as a representative of the Council.
 Comply with the code of conduct of the outside body they are appointed to
if one exists.

14

Eastleigh Borough Council



Declare a personal interest in any business of the Borough Council where
it relates to a body, they are appointed to by the Borough Council.

9.

All Councillors are recommended to make sure that when they take up their
appointment with the outside body they have access to the key documents
regulating the organisation such as its constitution or terms of reference to
ensure they are aware of what the body can and cannot do, and receive a
briefing on the body or their role within it if necessary.

10.

There is a risk that appointments will not be made to all the outside bodies
which could hinder the Borough Council in furthering its interests and
priorities, and not develop the external facing role of Councillors.

Equality and Diversity Implications
11.

The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report because it is
making an appointment outside bodies. Equality and diversity will be
considered as part of the work of these bodies.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications
12.

Councillors travelling to meetings via unsustainable means could represent an
increase in greenhouse gases but some of this will be offset during social
distancing measures as many meetings are postponed or held virtually.
Councillors are encouraged to travel sustainably where possible and do not
receive paper copies of agendas.

Conclusion
13.

That the appointments to the Regulatory Panels, other groups and Outside
Bodies should approved for the 2020/21 municipal year.
JULIE WILLIAMS
LOCAL AREA MANAGER

Date:
Contact Officer:
Tel No:
e-mail:
Appendices Attached:

26 May 2020
Julie Williams
02380 688289
julie.williams@eastleigh.gov.uk
1

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.
None.

Eastleigh Borough Council

15

This page is intentionally left blank

APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2020/21
Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local Area Committee
Name of Organisation:

BURSLEDON AND DISTRICT COMMUNITY
ASSOCIATION BOARD

2020-2021
Representative is:

Cllr Tonia Craig

Contact Officer:

Julie Williams

Committee:

Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local Area
Committee

Terms of reference
and objectives of
organisation:

To promote the benefit of the inhabitants of the parish of
Bursledon and Old Netley; to advance education and to
provide facilities in the interests of social welfare for
recreation and leisure time and occupation with the object of
improving the conditions of life for the said inhabitants; and
to maintain and manage, or to co-operate with any local
authority in the maintenance and management, of a
community centre for activities in furtherance of the above
objectives.

Key areas of interest and
topical Issues for the
organisation:

Management of the Community Centre.

No of meetings per year:

Usual time of meeting(s):

Minimum 4

To be confirmed, likely evening

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):
Not known

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

Interest in and knowledge of issues concerning use of
community centres. Awareness of local community needs
and how these needs may be met using these facilities.

Details of any training
provided:

Briefings as required.

Details of anticipated
workload:
eg will member attend
meeting only or be
involved in other work?

Members are expected to prepare for and attend Board
meetings. There may be occasional other meetings with
members of the association, users of the new centre and
other stakeholders.

Name and address of
contact for organisation:

e:mail: bursledoncc@outlook.com
tel: 023 8040 37253
Bursledon CommunityCentre
Portsmouth Road
Bursledon
SOUTHAMPTON SO31 8ES

17

APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2020/21
Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local Area Committee
Name of Organisation:

HAMBLE SCHOOL COMMUNITY MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

2020-2021
Representative is:

Cllr David J A Airey

Contact Officer:

Julie Williams

Committee:

Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local Area
Committee

Terms of reference
and objectives of
organisation:

The Committee will oversee all aspects of the community
use of the buildings, land and facilities of the school. To
make educational, cultural, recreational, sport, health and
social provision available and accessible for the whole
community.

Key areas of interest and
topical Issues for the
organisation:

Develop and manage a balanced programme of activities
within available resources including F.E. courses, centre run
activities, lettings, coach/teacher education programmes,
use by youth/voluntary/uniform groups, health education.

No of meetings per year:

Usual time of meeting(s):

4

Evening - 7pm

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):
Main meetings
planned well in
advance

18

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

Interest in and knowledge of issues concerning community
use of schools. Awareness of local community needs and
how these needs may be met using these facilities.

Details of any training
provided:

Induction, information and advice by County Community
Education Officer.

Details of anticipated
workload:
eg will member attend
meeting only or be
involved in other work?

Members are expected to prepare for and attend Board
meetings. There is a formal appointment process requiring
signing up to a Code of Conduct and mutual expectations.
Members attend formal openings etc, as well as taking part
in working groups/panels.

Name and address of
contact for organisation:

Diane Kaye
Clerk to Govenors
Hamble School
Satchell Lane
Hamble-le-Rice SOUTHAMPTON SO31 4NE

APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2020/2021
Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local Area Committee
Name of Organisation:

HAMPSHIRE BUILDINGS PRESERVATION TRUST
LIMITED

2020-2021
Representative is:

Julie Williams, Local Area Manager, Eastleigh Borough
Council

Contact Officer:

Julie Williams

Committee:

Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local Area
Committee

Terms of reference
and objectives of
organisation:

To preserve the English historical, architectural and
constructional heritage existing in and around Hampshire, in
the form of buildings of particular beauty or historical,
architectural or constructional interest, or ancient
monuments

Key areas of interest and
topical Issues for the
organisation:

Listed buildings and conservation areas.

No of meetings per year:

Usual time of meeting(s):

1

Daytime - October

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

General interest.

Details of any training
provided:

None.

Details of anticipated
workload:
eg will member attend
meeting only or be
involved in other work?

Attend annual meeting.

Name and address of
contact for organisation:

The Secretary
Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust
Bursledon Brickworks
Coal Park Lane
Swanwick SOUTHAMPTON SO31 7GW

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):

19

APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2020/21
Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local Area Committee
Name of Organisation:

PILANDS WOOD COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

2020-2021
Representative is:

Cllr Tonia Craig

Contact Officer:

Julie Williams

Committee:

Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local Area
Committee

Terms of reference
and objectives of
organisation:

To promote the benefit of the inhabitants of Pilands Wood,
Warwick Gardens and Old Netley and the neighbourhood by
associating together with the inhabitants, local authorities,
voluntary and other organisations. To advance education,
recreation, and leisure time occupation. To establish or
secure the establishment of a community centre.

Key areas of interest and
topical Issues for the
organisation:

Bringing the community together by providing activities and
events for young and old. Helping to make Pilands Wood a
better place to live.

No of meetings per year:

Usual time of meeting(s):

12

7.30 pm

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):
Every third
Thursday

20

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

Committee procedure. Fund raising abilities. Willing to turn
their hands to everything. Must be flexible, even tempered
and tolerant.

Details of any training
provided:

No training at present, but willing to pass on experience
gained.

Details of anticipated
workload:
eg will member attend
meeting only or be
involved in other work?

Attend meetings. Be involved as much as possible in the
Association's activities.

Name and address of
contact for organisation:

Chair
Pilands Wood Centre
Chamberlayne Road
Bursledon SOUTHAMPTON SO31 8DU
Tel: 023 8040 5119/5190 email: pwca@btconnect.com

APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2020-2021
Bursledon-Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local Area Committee
Name of Organisation:

RIVER HAMBLE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

2020-2021
Representative is:

Cllr Jane Rich

Contact Officer:

Julie Williams

Committee:

Bursledon-Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local Area
Committee

Terms of reference
and objectives of
organisation:

As contained in Hampshire County Council constitution and
the River Hamble Revision Order 1969 (as amended).

Key areas of interest and
topical Issues for the
organisation:

The River Hamble

No of meetings per year:

Usual time of meeting(s):

4

10am Fridays

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):
Dates published for
the year

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

To have a general understanding of the River Hamble, its
users and the environment

Details of any training
provided:

Optional (welcome at office and will be given as much
background and information as required)

Details of anticipated
workload:
eg will member attend
meeting only or be
involved in other work?

Scope to be involved in sub groups/working groups

Name and address of
contact for organisation:

Jason Scott
Marine Director
Harbour Office
Shore Road
Warsash SOUTHAMPTON SO31 9FR
Jason.Scott@hants.gov.uk

21

APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2020/2021
Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local Area Committee
Name of Organisation:

SOLENT SEA RESCUE ORGANISATION

2020-2021
Representative is:

Cllr Jane Rich

Contact Officer:

Julie Williams

Committee:

Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local Area
Committee

Terms of reference
and objectives of
organisation:

Saving of life at sea, within the Solent area, including the
River Hamble and Southampton Water. First Aid Rescue.

Key areas of interest and
topical Issues for the
organisation:
No of meetings per year:

Usual time of meeting(s):

10

2.00 pm - 6.00 pm

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):
Annual programme

22

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

A working knowledge of small boats and/or the work of the
Rescue Services.

Details of any training
provided:

None.

Details of anticipated
workload:
eg will member attend
meeting only or be
involved in other work?

Meetings only. Budget and operational.

Name and address of
contact for organisation:

Mr I Hoult
HCC
Chief Execs. Dept.
Room 317a
E2 Court South
High Street
Winchester

APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2020/2021
Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local Area Committee
Name of Organisation:

STANDING CONFERENCE ON PROBLEMS
ASSOCIATED WITH THE COASTLINE

2020-2021
Representative is:

Cllr Malcolm Cross, Officer Rep: David Pickett

Contact Officer:

David Pickett

Committee:

Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local Area
Committee

Terms of reference
and objectives of
organisation:

To act as a forum for the exchange of information between
constituent authorities. To ensure a coordinated approach
to coastal engineering works. To promote research as
appropriate.
To act in an encouraging, guiding and
coordinating role in the preparation of Coastal Zone
Management Plans and related strategies.

Key areas of interest and
topical Issues for the
organisation:

The shoreline, the coastal zone, dredging, sedimentation,
coast protection, beach replenishment and ecological and
environmental issues.

No of meetings per year:

Usual time of meeting(s):

3

10.30 am - 1.00 pm

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):
Agreed at previous
meeting

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

Members should have a knowledge of coast protection and
management of their local area.

Details of any training
provided:

None.

Details of anticipated
workload:
eg will member attend
meeting only or be
involved in other work?

Attend meetings only.

Name and address of
contact for organisation:

Tristan Fieldsend
Democratic Services Assistant
Standing Conference on Problems Associated with the
Coastline
Havant Borough Council
Civic Centre Road Havant PO9 2AX

23

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
BURSLEDON, HAMBLE-LE-RICE AND HOUND LOCAL AREA
COMMITTEE
Thursday, 11 June 2020
FINANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT
Report of the Assistant Local Area Manager

Recommendations
It is recommended that
(1)

£12,500 is allocated towards the Air Quality strategy in Bursledon, Hamble-LeRice and Hound (BHH) funded from Developers Contributions;

(2)

£4,925 is allocated for enhancement to the Bursledon Station Car Park funded
by Developers Contributions;

(3)

£3,095 is allocated for repair to the ‘Rail Trail’ in Hamble funded by existing
revenue budget;

(4)

£1,080 is allocated for new bins in Hamble Square, funded by existing revenue
budget.

(5)

£210 is allocated for replacement Dragons Teeth at Bembridge funded from
existing revenue budget;

(6)

£360 is allocated for a replacement bin in Cunningham Gardens funded from
existing revenue budget; and

(7)

£965 is allocated from the Community Grants Revenue Budget to Growfest
(£300) and Hamble Parish Council (£665) funded from revenue budget.

Summary
This report contains recommendations for expenditure from the Committee’s developer
contributions and revenue budget.
Statutory Powers
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of competence,
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area.
S.106 Town and Country Planning Act 1990

25

Strategic Implications
1.

The works outlined below contribute to the following strategic priorities:




Local First: where possible taking decisions at a local level about things
which affect people’s lives, and using contributions from local
developments for local projects
Excellent Environment for all: creating a sense of place through
improved pathways, additional bins and air quality.
Enabling health and wellbeing and tackling deprivation: improving
community infrastructure and places where different people can meet
and receive support and services.

Air Quality Strategy
2.

he new Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) has recently been approved and
adopted by Cabinet. This AQAP contains an action to carry out further
studies to identify the categories and types of vehicles on the Borough’s
roads, including their age and EURO rating. The study will be focussed in the
Eastleigh (ELAC) and Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound (BHH) Local
Areas, where in some locations nitrogen dioxide levels are known to be
exceeding national objectives. The aim of this work is to find out how much
each vehicle type contributes to pollution, allowing actions to be targeted at
those with the largest impact.

3.

A detailed proposal and costings have been received from consultants
Ricardo. The survey will collect data on vehicle details using Automatic
Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) and will also measure emissions in the
field. This will provide vehicle counts, split by detailed vehicle type and EURO
rating, and information on how much each is emitting under actual driving
conditions. This can then be used for effective targeting of actions as well as
providing information which can support other models to make them more
relevant to Eastleigh Borough and provide more accurate, location specific
predictions including for the BHH area. As part of the quote, Ricardo provides
two days of support time to assist in understanding the results and how to use
them effectively.

4.

The quoted cost of the study, associated data analysis and support time from
the consultant is £25,000. This is to be split equally between the ELAC and
BHH to reflect the location of the study areas identified. Therefore, it is
recommended that £12,500 is allocated to this project from developers’
contributions for air quality, as identified in the table below.
Number
DCO/12/71828
F/17/79863

26

Details
Taylor Wimpey Southern Counties – Land
West of Hamble Lane, Bursledon
BDW Reading – Berry Farm, Hamble Lane,
Bursledon

Eastleigh Borough Council

Amount
£4187.89
£8312.11

Bursledon Station Car Park
5.

The surface at Bursledon Station Car Park needs to be upgraded. Approval is
sought for the allocation of Developers Contributions below to fund the
enhancement of Bursledon Station Car Park. The Council’s Direct Services
Construction and Maintenance team have quoted £4,925 for the following
work:


Level out high points to existing potholes



Level out all high edging points



Backfill all low-level points using Type 1 (DOT) Department of
Transport granular sub-base material which is used in highly trafficked
areas and is most commonly used as a sub-base for highways, car
parks, footpaths, driveways, hardstanding and building bases.



Compact Type 1 by mechanical vibrol roller for hard compaction

DCC/14/74932 Foreman Homes re Windmill Lane, Bursledon
Receipt Date:28/04/2017

£4925

TOTAL

£4925

Repair to Rail Trail
6.

The Rail Trail in Hamble is an important link for cyclists and reduces the
number of people in their cars on Hamble Lane. It is unusable in its current
state. It is recommended that the committee approves £3,095 to be funded
from existing revenue budgets.

New Bins in Hamble Square
7.

Approval is sought for the replacement of three bins on Hamble Square due to
the inadequacy of their capacity and the condition they are in. Post bins will be
removed and replaced with 120ltr dual waste bins in keeping with the one bin
already situated in the Square. The £1,080 will be covered by existing
revenue budgets.

Dragons Teeth at Bembridge
8.

The entrance to Bembridge has several Dragons Teeth which are in a poor
state of repair. Approval is sought for £210 to fund the replacement of the six
damaged posts. This will be funded by existing revenue budgets.

Cunningham Gardens Bin
9.

Approval is sought for £360 to cover the cost of a bin in Cunningham
Gardens. This is to replace the previous bin which was removed when the
road was realigned. This will be funded by existing revenue budget.
Eastleigh Borough Council

27

Community Grants
10.

BHH Local Area Committee has received three grant applications. The first
from Growfest for funding towards a free community music festival to improve
the health and well-being of people with Physical and Learning Disabilities
and mental health issues in Hampshire and the wider community. They have
asked for £300.

11.

The further two applications are from Hamble Parish Council who have asked
for £500 towards the funding of a scramble net for the Mount Pleasant Play
Area. This will replace well used net equipment. The second grant was a
request for £330 which will fund speed limit stickers to be placed on resident’s
wheelie bins along the stretch of Hamble Lane. It has been agreed that 50%
of this grant request will be issued. They will receive £165. These will be
funded by existing revenue budget.

Financial Implications
12.

The recommendations in this report can be contained within existing allocated
and unallocated developer’s contributions and revenue budget.

Risk Assessment
13.

The risk of not supporting the AQAP could be detrimental to the air quality in
the area. Repair to the Bursledon station car park is required to prevent
potential risk of injuries and/or damage to vehicles.

14.

The rail trail is no longer usable due to its poor condition. If it is not repaired
then local people will not have viable alternatives to using cars, nor have
attractive routes close to home for health-promoting activity (walking, jogging,
cycling).

Equality and Diversity Implications
15.

The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as the decision
relates to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, or
fostering good relations between different people.

16.

A full Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out, because
while there are some equalities impacts, it is not proportionate to carry out a
full EIA.

17.

The improvements to the Rail Trail and the surface improvements at
Bursledon Station Car Park will make these more accessible, especially for
residents with disabilities.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications
18.

28

None of the proposals within this report will lead to increases in Greenhouse
Gas/CO2, or damage ecology or the environment; in fact the majority of the
Eastleigh Borough Council

recommendations aim to protect the environment, for example, reducing litter
by providing bins, and an air quality survey leading to better targeted projects
to reduce pollution.
19.

The AQAP aims to improve air quality across the Borough, particularly in local
areas where air quality does not meet national objective levels. Poor air
quality has significant impact on the local environment and public health and
in many cases, air quality improvements are also positive for climate change.

20.

Not only do the recommendations seek to improve the environment, but they
also seek to support mitigation or adaptation to climate change. These include
improved paths and cycle ways to encourage non-motorised forms of
transport.

Conclusion
21.

Councillors are requested to agree expenditure from this Committee’s
revenue budget and available developer contributions for the above projects.
BECKY WISEMAN
ASSISTANT LOCAL AREA MANAGER

Date:
Contact Officer:
Tel No:
e-mail:
Appendices Attached:

29 May 2020
Becky Wiseman
02380688036
becky.wiseman@eastleigh.gov.uk
0

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.
None.

Eastleigh Borough Council

29

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
BHH – Bursledon, Hamble and Hound Local Area Committee Thursday 11 June
2020.
Application Number:
Case Officer:
Received Date:
Site Address:
Applicant:
Proposal:

Recommendation:

H/19/86984
David Huckfield
Monday 2 December 2019
14A CROWSPORT, HAMBLE-LE-RICE, SOUTHAMPTON,
SO31 4HG
Mr and Mrs Tom & Zoe Kiff
Erection of a new first floor extension with roof terrace, front
and side extensions, alterations to fenestration, alterations to
landscape, car parking layout and front boundary treatment
PERMIT subject to the following conditions

CONDITIONS AND REASONS
1

The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with
the following plans numbered: P00 Rev A, P01, P02, P03, P04, P05, P06,
P07, P08, P09, P10, P11, P12, P13, P14, P15, P16, P17, P18, P19, P20,
P21 and P22.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2

The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years from
the date of this decision.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

3

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the
development hereby approved shall match in type, colour and texture to
those as listed in Section 6 of the application form.
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interest of the
amenities of the area.

4

The screening proposed to be installed to the eastern and southern sides of
the upper floor roof terrace shall be installed in accordance with the
approved plans prior to it being first brought into use. The glazed screen in
combination with the parapet wall upon which it will be mounted shall be to a
minimum height of 1.8m above the level of the terrace with the glazing being
obscured to a minimum of Pilkington’s level 3 or equivalent. It shall thereafter
be maintained in that condition.
Reason: To protect the amenity and privacy of the occupiers of the
neighbouring properties.

5

Any window denoted as being obscure glazed on the approved elevation
drawings (drawing numbers P20 and P21) shall be obscure glazed to a

31

minimum of Pilkington’s level 3 or equivalent and shall thereafter be
maintained in that condition.
Reason: To protect the amenity and privacy of the occupiers of the
neighbouring properties.
Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning
Policy Framework (February 2019), Eastleigh Borough Council takes a
positive approach to the handling of development proposals so as to
achieve, whenever possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals
are dealt with in a timely manner.

Report
1.

This application has been referred to Committee by Councillors Cross, Craig,
Manning and Airey.

Description of application
2.

The application seeks approval for extensions and alterations to No. 14a
Crowsport which comprise of the erection of a new first/second floor extension
to house the relocated dining area and lounge as well as provide for a new roof
terrace surrounded by a parapet wall, with this being surmounted by an
obscure glazed screen to its eastern and southern sides. The lower and upper
ground floors of the dwelling are also proposed to be reconfigured, with the
latter being to accommodate 4 bedrooms, 3 of which will be served by ensuites, and the former which will also be partially extended, to provide a small
office/workshop served by a kitchenette and shower room, with an enlarged
garage. In addition, the proposals include an extension to the front (west) of the
property to provide an entrance porch as well as to the southern side of the
dwelling to create a utility area in place of the property’s existing conservatory.

3.

In addition to the physical alterations to the property itself, the proposals also
include: the partial reconfiguration of the existing rear terrace/patio area, steps
and walls; the realignment of the main entrance footpath which will incorporate
a bridge with glazed handrails which spans over a new pond feature; alterations
to boundary treatments; as well as the reconfiguration of the external car
parking area to allow for the accommodating of 3 off-road parking spaces.

The site and its surroundings
4.

32

The application site comprises of No 14a Crowsport, a detached three-bedroom
dwellinghouse constructed broadly in the Art Deco style, with white rendered
elevations and simple fenestrational openings. The property, along with No. 7,
was built on the site of the hard tennis court which had formed part of the
Crowsport Estate as originally designed in 1935 by the architect Robert
Crombie, with a bungalow having been subsequently built at some point on the

site in the period up to 1942. The present dwellinghouse that sits on the land,
save for the conservatory to its southern side and a few other minor additions,
was constructed in the early 1960s.
5.

The building is somewhat of an anomaly within the Crowsport Estate, owing
much to the topography of this section of the road which slopes notably down
moving northwards, and has an under-croft, part-subterranean lower ground
floor section which provides for an extensive garage and storage area, with the
living space being set exclusively on the storey above and having an equal
level of floor space. As a result, the property appears as single storey from
certain viewpoints including from the south on entering the Crowsport Estate
and moving towards the dwelling, as well as from the west which provides for
its front elevation and main public vantage point within the Crowsport street
scene. The lower ground floor is more evident from the north and east from
which the property appears as a two-storey structure. The dwelling has off-road
parking provided by way of a driveway to its northern side, in addition to the
aforementioned undercroft garage. Amenity space is provided to the east of the
property with there being an existing terrace/patio to the south, in addition to a
first floor balcony/terrace area to the property’s north-western corner.

6.

The Crowsport Estate was incorporated into the Hamble Conservation Area in
2008 and is also designated as a Special Policy Area within the Council’s
adopted Local Plan in recognition of its special and distinctive character which
is somewhat unique within the Borough. A number of the dwellings within
Crowsport have been subject to alterations and additions, including extensions,
garages, roof alterations, and the addition of first floor accommodation since
the estate was first constructed, some of which have been more successful
than others in respecting the characteristics and architectural ethos of their
original styling. In more recent years and assisted by the Conservation Area
and Special Policy Area designations now associated with Crowsport, such
developments have more appropriately sought to reinstate and indeed enhance
the architectural vocabulary, purity and simplicity associated with the Art Deco
style of the original development, whilst still allowing for the enlargement or
extension of the dwellings within the Estate.

Relevant planning history
7.

As noted above, the application dwelling did not form part of the original design
for the Crowsport Estate with a tennis court having initially been present on the
land where No. 14a and No. 7 are now sited. Indeed, the dwelling which
presently forms No. 14a was constructed in the early 1960s with consent
having been given for this property on 27 June 1960 under planning reference
WIR7573.

8.

A number of properties within the Estate have been subject to applications for
alterations and extensions including the provision of upper storeys and roof
terraces, albeit with these being limited to first floor level. Some have also been
subject to full demolition and rebuilding with larger dwellings. Of particular note
in the immediate proximity of No. 14a are the following planning applications:

33








No. 5 Crowsport - Construction of replacement dwelling – C/08/63584 Approved (2008)
No. 30 Satchell Lane – Two storey, single storey & first floor extensions
to dwelling to include provision of integral garage & balconies on three
elevations with new access from Crowsport – C/13/73447 – Approved
(2014)
No. 14 Crowsport - Single storey side, front and rear extensions, addition
of first floor living accommodation including roof terrace with parapet
walls, visibility screening and construction of detached garage to rear –
C/15/76351 - Approved (2015)
No. 28 Crowsport - Construction of 1no. 5-bedroom two storey dwelling
with first floor roof terraces and associated landscaping and car parking,
following demolition of existing three bed single storey dwelling –
C/17/80337 – Approved (2017)

Representations received
9.

A total of 8 letters of objection have been received from 5 different properties,
with the points of objection being summarised as follows:








The addition of a third floor to the building being out of keeping with and
detrimental to the character of the Crowsport Estate.
Overdevelopment of the site by virtue of the mass, scale and bulk of the
extensions.
The development being contrary to local plan policy.
A precedent being set for future applications for the addition of a third
floor to properties within the Estate.
Impacts upon amenity including: through overlooking and loss of privacy
from additional windows and the proposed roof terrace; overbearing
impact and visual intrusion; loss of light; and, additional noise associated
with the use of the terrace area.
A previous appeal having been dismissed for an additional storey at No.
7 Crowsport [Z/39390/001, 2003].

Consultation responses
Hamble Parish Council
10. Initial comments: The estate when built in the1930’s was designed as single
storey temporary accommodation for visiting sailors and was basic and
functional. In recent times the estate has become an iconic feature on the river
with increasingly a range of exclusive dwellings. Common to all at the moment
though is that they are capped at 2 storey. The third storey is too removed from
the original nature of the estate and the built form. In addition, extending to a
third storey is out of keeping with the design of the estate, creates an
overbearing structure on a prominent and elevated position within the estate as
well as resulting in a loss of privacy to adjoining dwellings. This is exacerbated
by the fact that the terrace and third storey extend to the building line, without
stepping back to reduce overlooking. Lastly the council did not feel that the

34

current design gave sufficient regard to the art deco window feature that in the
new design is lost amongst the angles and levels of the new design.
11. Comments on amended plans: The parish wish to restate their previous
published comments but also want to stress the importance of the size and
mass of the building at the top of the estate where the impact of it from lower
levels makes the build more dominant and overbearing in what has traditionally
been a two storey setting. The design concept for the estate is paramount and
the Committee believes that even with the revisions the application will be
damaging to the conservation listing. For this reason, the Parish wishes for the
application to be dealt with at a LAC level rather than by officer delegation.
Conservation Officer
12. The rationalisation and removal of the later extensions is a great help in
restoring the simplicity and purity of the original concept, albeit slightly different
from the rest. The curved bay of the existing main lounge overlooking the river
for example, being symmetrical and on pilotis, is alien but the proposed
replacement with only one curve and solid down to the ground is far more in
keeping with the ‘modern movement’ style of the building.
13. The massing and articulation of the building are in tune with the modern
movement / art deco design ethos of the estate with the proposed new first floor
in keeping with this style and some of the other buildings around. One’s initial
reaction to this is that it will interfere with the view of the river from no. 28 but
this does not appear to be the case, nor even much from no 5. and the
remainder of the immediately surrounding buildings are all single storey, so will
just lose some sky element but no view.
14. This example of the Crowsport Estate does not appear to be one of the
originals and differs in having an essentially storage lower ground floor to
elevate the dwelling itself from the reduced ground level to approximately
match those surrounding. Various add-ons over the years have diluted the
clarity of form, so this scheme to rationalise and restore the original
architectural vocabulary and clarity of design is a welcome revitalisation with
the addition of a first-floor extension within both policy limits and the relevant
architectural vocabulary.
Policy context: designation applicable to site




Within Built-up Area Boundary
Within Hamble Conservation Area
Within the Crowsport Special Policy Area

Legislative provisions, development plan saved policies, emerging local plan
policies, SPD’s and National planning policy
Legislative provisions

35

15. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 38(6) of
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a local planning
authority determining an application to do so in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
16. Section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 requires that local planning authorities, in the exercise of planning
functions with respect to any buildings or other land in a conservation area, pay
special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of that area.
The Development Plan
17. The Development Plan is the starting point for the consideration and
determination of this application and this comprises of the Saved Policies within
the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 (adopted May 2006).
Accordingly, the application must be assessed against those that are relevant
to the proposals.
The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011
18. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 (the adopted Local Plan)
was adopted in May 2006. In November 2008, the Council submitted a list of
proposed Saved Policies to the Secretary of State with a request that they be
saved until they could be replaced by a new Local Development Framework.
The policies detailed below were saved and are considered to be of relevance
to the development proposals.
19. Saved Policy 59.BE requires development to take full and proper account of the
context of the site including the character and appearance of the locality and be
appropriate in mass, scale, materials, layout, design and siting. It also requires
a high standard of landscape design, that development has a satisfactory
means of access and layout for vehicles, cyclists and pedestrians, makes
provision for refuse and cycle storage and avoids unduly impacting on
neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of light, loss of outlook, and noise,
disturbance and fumes.
20. Saved Policy 104.T requires that development provides for adequate off-road
parking to serve the development or use proposed.
21. Saved Policy 169.LB states that planning applications for new buildings, and
alterations to existing buildings, within Conservation Areas, will be permitted
provided that a number of criteria are met. Those that are relevant to this
application are that: (i) the proposal preserves or enhances the character or
appearance of the Conservation Area or its setting; (ii) any new building or
extension does not detract from the character of the area and where
appropriate retains the existing street building line and the rhythm of the streetscene; (iii) the mass, materials and form of the building and associated
landscape features are in scale and harmony with the existing and adjoining
buildings and the area as a whole and the proportions of its parts relate well to

36

each other, to the existing building and to adjoining buildings; (iv) architectural
details on buildings of value are retained; (vi) the materials to be used are
appropriate to and in sympathy with the existing buildings and the particular
character of the area; and (vii) they do not generate excessive traffic, car
parking, noise or cause detriment to the character of the local environment.
22. Saved Policy 184.LB states that in order to protect the special character of
Crowsport, development, including extensions, will not be permitted unless the
size, scale and architectural style, materials proposed and detailing closely
reflect that of the existing development.
Emerging Local Plan Policies
Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, July 2014:
23. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for examination in
July 2014 but the Inspector concluded that insufficient housing was being
provided for in the Plan and that it was unsound. While this has not been
withdrawn and remains a material consideration, it can therefore be considered
to have extremely limited weight in the determination of this application.
The Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036:
24. Following The Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 being found
unsound, the Council has prepared the Emerging Eastleigh Borough Local Plan
2016-2036. The Plan has been subject to public consultation (Regulation 19),
the period for which ran from 25 June until 8 August 2018, and has
subsequently been submitted to the Secretary of State for examination (on 31
October 2018), with hearings having commenced in late 2019 and concluded in
January 2020. The Council has recently received the Inspector’s written
feedback on the Plan. Given the status of the Plan, it is considered that
moderate weight can be afforded to the policies within it.
25. Within this plan, the site remains within the urban edge and within Hamble
Conservation Area with the relevant policies of both the 2011-2029 and 20162036 plans essentially echoing the requirements of those of the adopted local
plan as listed above. They are not therefore considered to affect the
recommendation put forward.
Supplementary planning documents / associated guidance


Hamble Conservation Area Appraisal
This document sets out guidance for development within Hamble
Conservation Area and specifically for Crowsport states that, in order to
protect its unique style, developments including extensions will not be
permitted unless the design reflects the scale, form and character of the
estate and has:
i.

Roof forms that are flat with parapets

37

ii. Walls that are white render
iii. Windows that are of a simple rectangular form without glazing
bars
iv. First floor extensions that do not exceed 50% of the area of the
ground floor.



Quality Places
Residential Parking Standards

National Planning Policy
26. At a national level, The National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the
‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in the
determination of planning applications. The National Planning Practice
Guidance provides additional guidance in support of the Framework and should
be afforded weight in the consideration of planning applications.
Assessment of proposal
Principle of development
27. The application site lies within the urban edge within the adopted Local Plan
where the basic principle of development is considered to be acceptable and
also forms part of the Crowsport Special Policy Area which, under the
provisions of Saved Policy 184.LB, allows for extensions and alterations to
properties providing they respect the overriding character of the estate. The
principle of the application dwelling being extended is therefore considered to
be acceptable, with any planning approval being subject to the particular
development proposal put forward being deemed to be appropriate and to
accord with the criteria of Saved Policy 184.LB, as well as the other relevant
local and national planning policy provisions.
Layout, design and impact on the character of the area
28. The proposed development includes a number of elements associated with the
extension, reconfiguration and refurbishment of the property, as well as the
external areas which surround the building. The alternations and additions to
the west and southern sides of the dwelling in the form of elevational changes
and single storey extensions of a simple rectangular footprint are considered to
be acceptable with the latter being modest in scale and representing
proportionate and sympathetically designed structures. Similarly, the alterations
to the northern side of the building including the removal of the first floor white
UPVC conservatory and also the alterations to the curved bay of the existing
main lounge and the removal of its supporting piers which the Council’s
Conservation Officer has highlighted as somewhat alien features within the
estate, each serve to enhance the appearance of the building and are more inkeeping with its ‘modern movement’ style.
29. Turning to the upper floor extension and whilst noting the representations of
neighbouring residents and the Parish Council in this regard, this is considered

38

to be acceptable in this particular instance and context. Whilst it is accepted
that the addition of a third storey per se may in itself be considered to be a
somewhat incongruous feature within the otherwise single and two-storey
Crowsport Estate, in this case the topography of the plot of No. 14a is such as
to allow for a differing approach to be taken for this specific dwelling without
undermining the ethos and character of this section of the Hamble
Conservation Area or the architectural heritage and style of the Estate itself. It
is not therefore deemed that allowing such development would serve to create
a precedent for other plots and whereby proposals for additional storeys may
have harmful effects in these regards.
30. The topography of the plot of No. 14a is such that as viewed from arguably its
most prominent public vantage point which is looking towards the property’s
principal elevation from Crowsport to the west, the dwelling would appear as a
stepped two-storey building rather than being three-storeys in height, with the
new upper-storey being introduced above what presently appears from this
view as a single-storey section of the property owing to the lower storey having
been built into banking of the ground. This would similarly be the case looking
northwards towards the building when entering Crowsport from Satchell Lane
and although the dwelling would be taller than at present, it would not be
excessive in this regard or out of keeping with the two-storey height of other
properties which can seen from this viewpoint.
31. Whilst the existing two floors of the current dwelling are more apparent when
viewed from the east and north, the notable recessing of the proposed upperstorey from each of these flanks of the building in combination with the
introduction of heightened intervening parapets, serves to notably reduce the
potential prominence and visibility of this addition without undermining the
distinctive character of the dwelling or its immediate surroundings and no
objection has been raised to the proposals in these regards by the Council’s
Conservation Officer. The size of the extension also conforms to the
requirements of the Hamble Conservation Area Appraisal for first floor
extensions within Crowsport that do not exceed 50% of the ground floor area of
a property.
32. In terms of finishing materials, these will complement and be sympathetic to the
surrounding context and the original Art Deco style of the Crowsport Estate,
with a simple pallet being proposed which comprises of white render for the
buildings external walls, grey windows and door frames, grey zinc
fenestrational feature panels, and glass screens around terraces and alongside
the entrance bridge providing pedestrian access to the dwelling. The external
changes to the grounds of the property which include a replacement pond
feature, hard and soft landscaping and alterations to some boundary treatments
are all considered to be acceptable and will serve to improve the setting of the
building.
33. Taking account of the above factors, the development is considered to be
acceptable in terms of its layout, design and impact upon the character of the
area and thereby accords with Saved Policies 59.BE, 169.LB and 184.LB of the

39

adopted Local Plan and the development criteria specified within the Hamble
Conservation Area Appraisal.
Impacts upon amenity
34. The application has been subject to a number of amenity related objections
from the occupiers of the immediate neighbouring properties with concerns
being raised in relation to overlooking, loss of privacy, loss of light, visual
intrusion, noise disturbance, and overbearing impact, with these principally
being in respect of the increased height resulting from the proposed upper floor
extension, additional windows, and the provision of the roof terrace. These
matters have been carefully considered as part of the assessment of the
application and whilst recognising that the development will be visible from
neighbouring properties and will have some degree of impact, the combination
of the siting, relative position and orientation of the development, as well as the
mitigation measures proposed as part of the design, ensure that this will not be
unacceptable in planning terms or unduly adversely harmful to the amenity of
neighbouring occupiers.
35. In terms of privacy related considerations, there is an element of mutual
overlooking which is apparent in a number of areas of Crowsport owing to the
proximity of buildings, topography and the presence of roof terraces and, to a
degree, this is arguably characteristic of the Estate. It is essential however to
ensure that any new development does not unduly compromise the privacy and
amenity of neighbouring residents to a level that would be unacceptably
intrusive and detrimental to their amenity.
36. In this regard, the proposed upper storey extension has been designed with
minimal fenestration in its southern elevation facing towards No. 30 Satchell
Lane, with this being limited to a stairwell window that is proposed to be
obscure glazed. Obscure glazing is similarly proposed for the kitchen window
which faces east towards No. 7. With regards to the roof terrace, an obscureglazed screen is proposed above the parapet walls to each of these sides of
the terrace to a combined height of 1.8m in order to prevent overlooking into
the amenity areas and windows of these two dwellings when the terrace is in
use, with this also screening any views from the east facing bi-fold doors
looking towards No. 7. In terms of the relationship with No. 14 to the north, the
facing glazing at second floor level and the terrace itself are set at a greater
distance from the shared boundary, 13m and 9m respectively at their closest
points, with this being deemed to be sufficient that it is not considered that
unacceptable overlooking would occur or additional screening would be
required. The separation distance between facing windows and the terrace to
the dwellings to the opposing side of Crowsport to the west, will similarly negate
such impacts.
37. Other objections raised by neighbouring occupiers as noted above concern the
matters of visual intrusion, loss of light, overbearing impact, and noise
disturbance. In these regards, the upper storey extension would be arguably
most apparent from the garden and property of No. 30 Satchell Lane with the
extension being sat flush with the main southern elevation of the existing

40

application dwellinghouse and being in closest proximity to a shared boundary
in this position. A separation distance of 4.1m to this boundary would still
however be maintained and whilst the height will increase relative to the
existing building, this height is not deemed to be excessive with its flat roof form
assisting in this regard. The combination of this, along with the reduced width of
the extension which has been amended during the course of the application
process to span a more limited proportion of the shared boundary, as well as
the orientation of the application dwelling to the north/north-east of No. 30,
result in a development which is not considered to be unacceptably
overbearing, visually intrusive or that would result in an unacceptable loss of
outlook for the occupiers of this neighbouring dwelling, with the potential for
good levels of daylight and sunlight to the property and its garden being
maintained when factoring in the movement of the sun.
38. In terms of the impacts of the upper storey extension on other neighbouring
occupiers in these particular respects, the separation distance to the
boundaries of the dwellings to the north, west and east are considered to be
sufficient to limit any undue harm, with these being approximately 13m, 25m
and 9.8m respectively, and whilst the heightened parapet wall with screen
above to the eastern side of the terrace will increase the height of the built form
in closer proximity to the boundary with No. 7, these are relatively modest in
width with the glazed nature of the screen allowing light to pass through
towards the western elevation of this dwelling. In all cases, it is not deemed that
the extent of the terrace will itself lead to excessive noise or disturbance and,
as noted above, roof terraces are a feature of many of the dwellings within the
Crowsport Estate.
39. With regards to the other elements of the development, the elevational changes
proposed are not considered to unduly materially increase the levels of
overlooking relative to the existing situation and the ground floor extensions
proposed are modest in height and scale and would not be unacceptably
overbearing for neighbouring occupiers, even taking account of the position of
the addition to the southern elevation relative to the boundary with No. 30. The
reconfiguration of the existing external amenity areas to the east and south of
the dwelling, including the lower level terrace are also acceptable, with
screening or improved boundary treatments being proposed where necessary,
including alongside the re-sited exterior stairs connecting the external
terraces/patios. There are no amenity related concerns in terms of the hard and
soft landscaping changes, including the reconfiguration of the driveway and
entrance pathway.
40. The application is considered to accord with the requirements of Saved Policy
59.BE (vii.) of the adopted Local Plan, as well as the guidance contained within
the Council’s Quality Places SPD, with regards to its amenity related impacts.
Highway matters
41. The point of vehicular access to the site will remain unchanged with this being
from Crowsport to the north-western corner of the plot. Whilst a boundary
treatment will be introduced along each of the flank sides of the access and

41

initial section of driveway, this will be low level and will not therefore unduly
interrupt visibility for vehicles accessing or egressing the site. In terms of
vehicular parking, the requirements in this respect are set out within the
Council’s adopted Residential Parking Standards SPD and as the property will
increase from 3 to 4 bedrooms, the standards require that 3 on-site parking
spaces be provided. These will be available via a reconfigured and resurfaced
driveway area to the northern side of the building, with additional space being
available within the enlarged undercroft garage which will also provide ample
space for the secure storage of cycles.
42. The application therefore accords with Saved Polices 59.BE and 104.T of the
adopted Local Plan with regards to its highway impacts and related
considerations.
Equalities implications
43. Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality duty.
Section149 states that:
(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to
the need to:
(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.
When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the equality
duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups.
44. It is not considered that this application raises any equality implications.
Planning obligations considerations
45. None.
Other material considerations
46. None.
Conclusion
47. In conclusion, the development proposed is considered to be acceptable with
the extensions and alterations suitably responding to the particular topography
and context of the application site and serving to respect and enhance the
character and visual appearance of the property and that of this section of the
Crowsport Estate, whilst at the same time not unacceptably impacting upon the
amenity of neighbouring properties or highway safety. The development

42

therefore accords with the requirements of the relevant local and national
planning policies and adopted supplementary planning guidance, including the
development criteria of the Hamble Conservation Area Appraisal. It is therefore
recommended that planning permission be granted subject to conditions.

43

44

